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“Tocayo"),
JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN SALAZAR Violations: Title 21, United States Code
(a/k/a “Alfredillo”), Sections 841, 846, 848(a), (b) and
JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ (e)(1)(A), 952, 969, 963, and Title 18
(a/k/a “El Guero,” “Guero Moreno,” United States Code, Sections 924(c)
and “Morenoc”), and and 1966(h)
OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ
(a/k/a “El Raton” and “Raton TWELFTH
Nuevo”) SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT

COUNT ONE

The SPECIAL OCTOBER 2022 GRAND JURY charges:
Xs Beginning no later than in or about May 2008, and continuing until at

least on or about October 21, 2021, at Chicago, in the Northern District of Illinois,

Hastern Division, and elsewhere,

IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR,
also known as “Luis,” “Chapito,” and “Tocayo,”
JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN SALAZAR,
also known as “Alfredillo,”
JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ,
also known as “El Guero,” “Guero Moreno,” and “Moreno,” and

OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ,

also known as “El Raton” and “Raton Nuevo,”

(collectively, “Los Chapitos,” “Los Menores,” and “Los Chiquillos”),




defendants herein, did conspire with each other, with Joaquin Guzman Loera, Ismael
Zambada Garcia, and Damaso Lopez Nunez, and with others known and unknown to
the Grand Jury, to knowingly and intentionally possess with intent to distribute and
distribute a controlled substance, namely, 5 kilograms or more of a mixture and.
substance containing a detectable amount of cocaine, a Schedule II Controlled
Substance, 1 .kjlogram or more of a mixture and substance containing a detectable
amount of heroin, a Schedule I Controlled Substance, 500 grams or mozre of a mixture
and substance containing a detectable amount of methamphetamine, a Schedule II
Controlled Substance, and 1,000 kilograms or more of a mixture and substance
containing a detectable amount of marijuana, a Schedule I Controlled Substance, in
violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1).
Overview of the Conspiracy

2. It was part of the conspiracy that Joaquin Guzman Loera (“Chapo”) and
Ismael Zambada Garcia (“Mayo”) were the co-leaders of a transnational drug
trafficking organization based in Mexico known as the “Sinaloa Cartel.” Under the
~leadership of Guzman Loera and Zambada Garcia, the Sinaloa Cartel operated as an
affiliation of drug traffickers and money launderers located in multiple countries
throughout the world who coordinated and pooled their collective resources in order
to: (1) transport drugs from countries of supply in Central and South America to
Mexico; (2) transport drugs through Mexico and into the United States; (3) distribute
drugs to wholesale customers in the United States; and (4) collect, launder, and

transfer the proceeds of drug trafficking.




3. It was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera and Zambada
Gtarcia, and members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel under them, including four
of Guzman Loera’s sons, defendants IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR,
JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO
GUZMAN LOPEZ (collectively, “Los Chapitos,” “Los Menores,” and “Los Chiquillos”),
coordinated their drug trafficking activities to import large quantities of cocaine from
Central and South American countries, including Colombia,. Ecuador, Venezuela,
Peru, Panama, Costa Rica, Honduras, and Guatemala, to Mexico. Guzman Loera and
Zambada Garcia, and members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel under them,
including defendants IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO
GUZMAN SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ,
coordinated the unloading of large shipments of cocaine in Mexico, and coordinated
the transportation and storage of these shipments within Mexico. Guzman Loera and
Zambada Garcia, and members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel under them,
including defendants IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO
GUZMAN SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ,
coordinated their drug trafficking activities to smuggle large quantities of cocaine,
generally in shipments of hundreds or thousands of kilograms at a time, as well as
multi-kilogram quantities of heroin, methamphetamine, and marijuana, from Mexico

across the United Stétes border, and then into and throughout the United States,

including Chicago, Illinois, and elsewhere.




4. It was further part of the conspiracy that, following Guzman Loera’s
arrest in 2016 and extradition in 2017, defendants IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN
SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ,
and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ assumed their father’s formexr role as leaders of the
Sinaloa Caxrtel, along with Zambada Gaxrcia and Damaso Lopez Nunez.

b. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendants IVAN
ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN SALAZAR,
JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ amassed greater
control over the Sinaloa Cartel by threatening to cause violence, and causing violence,
against Damaso Lopez Nunez and his family and associates, thereby becoming the
conspiracy’s principal leaders.

Members of the Conspiracy

6. It was further part of the conspiracy that, prior to Guzman Loera’s
arrest in 2016, Guzman Loera and Zambada Garcia shared the leadership role in the
Sinaloa Cartel. Guzman Loera and Zambada Garcia each negotiated the price for,
and caused to be obtained, large quantities of cocaine from Central and South
American countries, to be transported to Mexico, and caused multi-kilogram
quantities of cocaine, heroin, methamphetamine, and marijuana to be transported
from Mexico to the United States border, and then into and throughout the United
States. Guzman Loera and Zambada Garcia each further caused drug proceeds to be

laundered and transferred from the United States to Mexico and elsewhere.




7. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant IVAN
ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR (a/k/a “Luis,” “Chapito,” and “Tocayo”), the son
of Guzman Loera, acted as a logistical coordinator who, on behalf of Guzman Loera
and the Sinaloa Cartel’'s members and associates, caused multi-kilogram quantities
of cocaine, heroin, methamphetamine, and marijuana to be transported from Mexico
to the United States border, and then into and throughout the United States for
distribution. IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR further caused drug
proceeds to be collected from customers in the United States and laundered and
transferred from the United States to Mexico and elsewhere for the benefit of the
Sinaloa Cartel’s members and associates. Following his father’s arrest in 2016, IVAN
ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR assumed a role as a leader and principal
organizer of the Sinaloa Cartel. ‘

8. It was further part of the conspiraéy that defendant JESUS ALFREDO

.GUZMAN SALAZAR (a/k/a “Alfredillo”), the son of Guzman Loera, acted as a
logistical coordinator who, on behalf of Guzman Loera and the Sinaloa Cartel’s
members and associates, caused multi-kilogram gquantities of cocaine, heroin,
methamphetamine, and marijuana to be transported from Mexico to the United
States border, and then into and throughout the United States for distribution.
JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN SALAZAR further caused drug proceeds to be colléacted
from customers in the United States and laundered and transferred from the United
States to Mexico and elsewhere for the benefit of the Sinaloa Cartel's members and

associates. Following his father's arrest in 2016, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN




SALAZAR assumed a role as a leader and principal organizer of the Sinaloa Cartel.

9, It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant JOAQUIN
GUZMAN LOP.EZ (a/k/a “BEl Guero,” “Guero Moreno,” and “Moreno”), the son of
Guzman Loera, acted as a logistical coordinator who, on behalf of Guzman Loera and
the Sinaloa Cartel’s members and associates, caused multi-kilogram quantities of
cocaine, heroin, methamphetamine, and marijuana to be transported from Mexico to
the United States border, and then into and throughout the United States for
distribution. JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ further caused drug proceeds to be
collected from customers in the United States and laundered and transferred from
the United States to Mexico and elsewhere for the benefit of the Sinaloa Cartel’s
members and associates. Following his father’s arrest in 2016, JOAQUIN GUZMAN
LOPEYZ assumed a role as a leader and principal organizer of the Sinaloa Cartel.

10. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant OVIDIO GUZMAN
LOPEZ (a/k/a “El Raton” and “Raton Nuevo”), the son of Guzman Loera, acted as a
logistical coordinator who, on behalf of Guzman Loera and the Sinaloa Cartel’s
members and associates, caused multi-kilogram quantities of cocaine, heroin,
methamphetamine, and marijuana to be transported from Mexico to the United
States border, and then into and throughout the United States for distribution.
OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ further caused drug proceeds to be collected from
customers in the United States and laundered and transferred from the United States
to Mexico and elsewhere for the benefit of the Sinaloa Cartel's members and

associates. Following his father’s arrest in 2016, OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ assumed




a role as a leader and principal organizer of the Sinaloa Cartel.
Means and Methods of the Conspiracy

11. It was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera and Zambada
Garcia, and members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel, including defendants
IVAN - ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN
SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ, pooled
their collective resources and coordinated their activities to cause large quantities of
cocaine and other drugs and drug precursor chemicals to be imported from Central
and South American countries, including Colombié, Ecuador, Venezuela, Peru,
Panama, Costa Rica, Honduras, and Guatemala, and from elsewhere, to Mexico,
using various means, inclﬁding cargo aircraft, private aircraft, submarines and other
submersible and semi-submersible vessels, container ships, supply vessels, go-fast
boats, fishing vessels, buses, rail cars, tractor trailers, automobiles, and private and
commercial interstate and foreign carriers. After the drugs and drug precursor
chemicals arrived in Mexico, the conspirators used shared resources to unload and
store the drugs in Mexico.

12. It was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera and Zambada
Garcia, and members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel, including defendants
IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN
SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ, used
shared networks of couriers affiliated with the Sinaloa Cartel, and coordinated their

activities to cause large quantities of cocaine, heroin, methamphetamine, and




marijuana, at times in shipments of hundreds or thousands of kilograms, to be
transported from various locations in Mexico to the United States border where the
drugs were then stored in multiple warehouses, stash houses, and safe houses located
in the areas of Tijuana, Mexicali, and elsewhere.

18. It was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera and Zambada
Garcia, and members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel, including defendants
IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN
SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ, used
shared networks of couriers affiliated wi;ch the Sinaloa Cartel, and coordinated their
activities to cause drugs to be smuggled across the United States-Mexico border using
multiple means, including through the use of vehicles, rail cars, and tunnels.

14. It was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera and Zambada
Garcia, and members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel, including defendants
IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN
SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ, used
shared networks of couriers and stash house operators affiliated with the Sinaloa
Cartel, and coordinated their activities to cause drugs to be unloaded and stored at
multiple stash house, safe house, and warehouse locations in Southern California and
elsewhere.

15. It was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera and Zambada
Garcia, and members and associates of the Sinaloa Caxrtel, including defendants

IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN




SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ, used
gshared networks of couriers afﬁliated with the Sinaloa Cartel to cause cocaine,
heroin, methamphetamine, and marijuana to be transported throughout the United
States, including to Chicago, Illinois, using various means, including cars, trucks, rail
cars, and private and commercial interstate carriers. Members of the conspiracy
directed the drugs to be stored in various stash houses and warehouses and then
provided and distributed to additional members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel,
as well to wholesale customers, on consignment, without requiring payment at the
time of delivery, in multiple locations.

16. It was further part of the conspivacy that the cocaine, heroin,
methamphetamiﬁe, and marijuana caused to be distributed by Guzman Loera,
Zambada Garcia, IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO
GUZMAN SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ,
and other membérs and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel, was further sold and
distributed to additional wholesale customers in the greater Chicago, Illinois, area,
and elsewhere in the United States and Canada.

17. It was further part of the conspiracy that Guiman Loera and Zambada
Garcia, and members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel, including defendants
IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN
SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ, used
shared networks of money couriers and money launderers to cause drug proceeds to

be collected from customers, counted, packaged, and transferred and laundered from




the United States to Mexico, Colombia, and elsewhere using multiple means,
including bulk cash smuggling, structured bank deposits, wire transfers, currency
exchange transfers, alternative credit-based systems used to transfer money without
the use of wires or other traditional means, goods-based systems in which items,
including cars, helicopters, and airplanes, were purchased in one location and
transferred to another location, and other methods.

18. It was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera, Zambada
Garcia, IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN
SATLAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ, and other
members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel, used various means to communicate
with each other in order to coordinate their drug trafficking activities, including
cellular telephones, satellite telephones, computers, instant messaging applications
on smart phones, and email accounts.

19. Tt was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera, Zambada
Garcia, IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN
SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ, and other
members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel, used coded language and other means
to misrepresent, conceal and hide, and to cause to be misrepresented, concealed and
hidden, the drug trafficking activities of the conspiracy, and to avoid detection and
apprehension by law enforcement authorities.

20. It was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera, Zambada

Garcia, IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN
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SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ, and other
members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel, possessed with intent to distribute
large quantities of drugs in various locations throughout the United States and the
world, including the possession of drugs later seized by law enforcement officials in
the United States, including in Chicago and elsewhere in the Northern District of
Illinois, the Central District of California, the Southern District of California, the
Nozrthern District of California, the District of Arizona, the Western District of Texas,
and elsewhere. |

21. Tt was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera, Zambada
Garcia, IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN
SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ, and other
members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel caused drug proceeds to be laundered
and transferred in various locations throughout the United States and the world,
including currency later seized by law enforcement in the United States, including in
Chicago and elsewhere in the Northern District of Illinois, and Los Angeles,
California, and elsewhere.

Acts of Violence in Furtherance of the Conspiracy

22. It was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera, Zambada
Garcia, IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO GUZMAN
SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ, and other
members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel used, and caused to be used, various

means to evade and escape law enforcement and military personnel—including on or
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about October 17, 2019, at Culiacan in the Mexican State of Sinaloa—and to protect
their drug distribution activities, including: obtaining guns and other weapons;
bribing corrupt public officials; and inciting violence, engaging in violence, and
threatening violence, including murder, kidnapping, assault, and battery, including
against law enforcement, rival drug traffickers, and members of their own drug
trafficking organization. It was further part of the conspiracy that Guzman Loera,
Zambada Garcia, IVAN ARCHIVALDO GUZMAN SALAZAR, JESUS ALFREDO
GUZMAN SALAZAR, JOAQUIN GUZMAN LOPEZ, and OVIDIO GUZMAN LOPEZ,
and members and associates of the Sinaloa Cartel under them used various means to
ensure they received payment for their drug distribution activities, including violence
and threats of violence.

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 846.
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